Port of Ridgefield
Regular Meeting Minutes
January 27, 2010




Present:	Scott Hughes		Brent Grening	Laurie Olin						Bruce Wiseman	Jeanette Ludka	Richard Haig
Scott Fraser		Gary Adkins		Wonder Baldwin
		John Barbieri		Steve Taylor		Bill Eling
Lee Wells		Roy Garrison		LeAnn Bremer
Rhidian Morgan	Randy Mueller	Don Stose	
Larry Cohen		Damon Webster	Dennis Mason
Don Thor		David Roe

______________________________________________________________________________

1. CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Scott Hughes called the Port of Ridgefield Commission meeting to order at the hour of 10:00 a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Chair Hughes led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AND MINUTES:
Commissioner Bruce Wiseman reviewed the minutes of the January 13, 2010 regular meeting and made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Chair Hughes seconded the motion. The motion was carried.

It was stated that Commissioner Joe Melroy and Michael Williams were attending the WPPA Centennial meeting in Tacoma Washington.

4. CORRESPONDENCE:
Comments on the following were made by Brent Grening:

Washington State University Vancouver – The Public Affairs Lecture Series will be held at WSUV on February 18, 2010 at Fort Vancouver High School Auditorium. The topic is “Beyond Capitalism and Socialism: Rebuilding an American Economy focused on Family and Community” 

WPPA Port Day - This event will be held in Olympia on Monday, February 1, 2010. The commission, Brent and Michael plan to attend. Commissioner Wiseman stated he will also be attending the Lions Club Health training after the Port Day event. The training will be held at the Ridgefield Community Center. He stated the cost for the training is $10 for a 2-year health card.

MTCA Financial alternatives Analysis Report – Brent stated the Washington State Department of Ecology has released the MTCA Financial Alternatives analysis report on their webpage. 
This work was completed by Jim Darling of Maul Foster & Alongi, Inc. in conjunction with Ecology and WPPA staff as well as with a group of sub-consultants including others. The Port of Ridgefield community project along with others was featured in the case study report. 
There may be legislation resulting from this to make our clean-up program even better. The MTCA financial analysis report will show how the Port of Ridgefield will use these funds. 

State of the County Address – The State of the County address will be held at the Skyview High School on Thursday, February 4, 2010 and starts at 3:30 p.m. 

Port of Vancouver RE:Port Breakfast – The breakfast is held on Thursday, February 4, 2010 from 7:30 – 9:00 a.m. at the Red Lion Hotel at the Quay.

5. CALL FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:
There were no public comments at this time.

6. FINANCE REPORT:
Jeanette Ludka stated that the Port purchased a new CD in the amount of $100,000 at 1.45% return for 2 years. 

The financial statements for the end of 2009 should be completed at the end of February. 

7. OLD BUSINESS:
There was no old business to discuss at this time.

8. NEW BUSINESS:
Randy Mueller presented a business development update on the following items:

Southwest Washington Health Systems/DPMC LLC – Randy stated with the sale of the Discovery Pointe property to Southwest Washington Health Systems (DPMC LLC), the transaction was conditioned upon DPMC developing the property according to certain timelines.  Since then, DPMC has requested, and the port commission has granted, extensions to the original development deadlines.

DPMC has requested an additional extension of their development timeline for the retail portion of the property (known as “area A”) to October 14, 2012. Port staff recommends extending the timeline, subject to the approval of a development agreement for the property between DPMC and the City of Ridgefield, and is acceptable to the port.

Larry Cohen from Southwest Washington Medical Center thanked the Port of Ridgefield for the extension. LeAnn Bremer, attorney for the Southwest Washington Medical Center, thanked the Port for their patience and stated they are in the process of developing a development agreement with the City of Ridgefield. 

Commissioner Wiseman made a motion to allow the port to extend DPMC LLC’s development deadline for “area A” to October 14, 2012, subject to the approval of a development agreement between DPMC LLC and the City of the Ridgefield that the Executive Director deems acceptable. Chair Hughes seconded the motion. The motion was carried. Brent stated the he will provide a letter of confirmation to the Southwest Washington Medical Center for their records.

North Pole Yard Rail Removal and WSDOT fill material – Tapani Underground Inc. is currently bringing additional fill material to the North Pole Yard (NPY) site from the Ridgefield Interchange Project. To make room available to place the fill material, and as part of the site preparation work for the eventual Millers Landing redevelopment, the port has hired Tapani Underground, Inc. to remove the rail lines buried in the NPY. The rail removal work is anticipated to last less than a week.  Later this year, the port will excavate the two “hot spots” in the North Pole Yard. 
Randy stated that approximately 1,600 linear feet of rail will be removed from the North Pole Yard. He stated that the Port will keep the old rails for potential reuse in the new development. 

Commissioner Wiseman asked how much soil has been delivered in the North Pole Yard. Randy responded, approximately 26,000 cubic yards of soil has been delivered and stated that all of the soil from the I-5 Project should fit in the North Pole Yard. 

Commissioner Wiseman commented on the Vancouver Lake Project having restrictions on the lake and pondered how the Ridgefield Fire and Rescue Department will respond to potential activity and/or accidents in the lake. Commissioner Wiseman and Randy serve on the Vancouver Lake Task Force and are informed of any changes regarding Vancouver Lake and noted public request can be made through them.

Lake River surveying and dredging – As previously reported, port staff are working with the Pacific Northwest Waterways Association (PNWA) and the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to have Lake River dredged.

As one of the first steps in this project, Lake River must be surveyed in order to accurately assess the need for dredging.  This week, a USACE boat is on Lake River doing this survey work.  The results will be available soon, and the data will also be used in planning the port’s Millers Landing waterfront redevelopment and in the sediment contamination investigation of Lake River.

FDIC-owned property - At the last port commission meeting, the commission approved the purchase of 13 acres of land southeast of the intersection of 45th Avenue and Pioneer Street.  The closing date for the sale was this week, however the FDIC has asked for an extension.  The extra time is needed to resolve issues pertaining to the title of the land, issues that the port had required as conditions of purchase. Once these matters have been resolved adequately, staff will execute the purchase as directed by the commission.

Integrated Planning Grant Progress Report – The City and Port of Ridgefield have worked together to secure a $100,000 grant from the Washington State Department of Ecology. The purpose of Integrated Planning Grants is to encourage community planning around major environmental clean-up projects.

Brent stated our grant proposal was designed to develop a community supported strategic action plan to revitalize downtown Ridgefield and support redevelopment of the waterfront.  The planning effort is specifically designed to promote a coordinated approach to addressing the needs and opportunities of downtown Ridgefield and its waterfront. 

The work plan funded by the grant addresses four key themes and includes eight tasks. Grant funds must be spent by June 30, 2011. The City of Ridgefield is the lead on this project. The grant proposal was written by the Port of Ridgefield. 
The Steering Committee Members are: Ron Onslow, Joe Melroy, Don Stose, Justin Clary and Brent Grening. This committee will oversee the administration of the grant and selection of project consultants. Public involvement is welcome throughout the planning process. The steering Committee has drafted a Request for Proposal (RFP) for review.

Lee Wells invited Brent to present the Integrated Planning Grant Progress Report at the next Ridgefield Business Association meeting. Chair Hughes stated he plans to attend the Ridgefield Business Association meetings.

Rhidian Morgan asked if this grant can be used to fund portions of the Ridgefield Railroad Overpass Project. Brent explained the criteria for the grant. Rhidian also asked the amount of federal funding for the Ridgefield Railroad Overpass Project. Brent explained the funding amount and criteria in the signed agreement with the Washington State Department of Transportation.

Shoreline Master Program Interlocal Agreement – Brent stated the Ports of Ridgefield, Camas-Washougal, and Vancouver are in the process of hiring a consultant to represent the port’s interest in shoreline regulation. A draft Interlocal agreement has been drafted for review by the port’s attorney. 

Port Meeting Time – Chair Hughes stated he and staff have heard from the community for a desire to change the time for the port meetings. Commissioner Wiseman made a motion to move the meeting time to 3:00 p.m. effective immediately. The commission will continue to meet on the 2nd and 4th Wednesday of every month. 

Environmental Remediation Debt Structuring Plan – Brent stated the Port plans to hire Jim Darling of Maul Foster and Alongi, Inc. and Jeff Smith, CPA to assist the Port in planning the closure of the PWT Clean-up. He stated Jim Darling will prepare a detailed work plan for the Port. He stated a meeting has been scheduled with Jim, Jeff Smith and Chris Hermann to discuss the process.

Used Equipment Surplus, Asset #172 Filter Press – Laurie Olin reported that the Port has a piece of used surplus equipment that will be sold to a purchaser. She stated she will notify the Washington State Department of Ecology with the specific details for their records.

Consultant Reports:
Steve Taylor stated he will meet with the Washington State Department of Ecology today at the quarterly meeting to discuss several agenda items. He stated today’s discussion will center on a preliminary timeframe of when the remediation project will be completed and the clean-up and breakdown process of the equipment.

Scott Fraser stated that from his opinion, personal real estate is slow-moving; however commercial real estate is going well.

John Barbieri stated he is working with Randy on checking deeds for two parcels. He is still checking on the deeds for the Union Pacific deed railroad, and North Pole Yard properties. Randy stated he is hopeful to receive a quick claim on the BSNF property.



Upcoming Meetings:
· WPPA Port Day in Olympia – this event will be on Monday, February 1, 2010
· Port of Vancouver, Port Report – this is a breakfast that is scheduled on Thursday, February 4, 2010
· PNWA Regional Meeting – the meeting will be on Friday, February 12, 2010 at the Portland offices, Brent plans to attend. 
· 2010 Mission to Washington D.C. – this event is February 28, 2010 – March 4, 2010 in Washington D.C. Randy and Chair Hughes are planning to attend the event. Brent stated Hal Hiemstra is requesting a meeting agenda from the Port of Ridgefield that will be discussed during the visit to D.C. 

Commissioner Wiseman suggested inviting the US Fish and Wildlife regional director to the Port of Ridgefield to provide an update of our remediation project and explain how the Port have taken emergency action to protect the wildlife and refuge. 

9. CALL FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:
Rhidian Morgan stated he found a reference to the Carty Unit. Lee stated that the Ridgefield Neighborhood Association has a vision for the community that needs to be shared with Ms. Robyn Thorson, the new director of the pacific region for the US Federal Fish and Wildlife Service. It was also suggested to invite the regional supervisor, Mr. West to the Port of Ridgefield to share our vision.

Gary Adkins asked if there was a map to indicate where the Ridgefield Railroad Overpass will start and the depth of elevation. Randy Mueller explained the location and start points.

Brent explained the rumor of the City of Ridgefield and the Port of Ridgefield does not plan to make Pioneer Street into a 4-lane road and encouraged those present to let the public the know this as well.

Richard Haig inquired about the future plans of Division Street and the land at the port. Brent explained the framework of this process.

Lee announced the Ridgefield City Council Retreat will meet at the Tri-Mountain Golf Course on Friday, January 29, 2010.

Lee Wells questioned the decision making process of the potential parking design in downtown Ridgefield. Brent and Commissioner Wiseman stated the City of Ridgefield will make the decisions regarding the parking in Ridgefield.

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION – REAL ESTATE UPDATE
At 11:35 a.m. Chair Hughes announced a recess from the regular meeting to enter into an executive session to discuss real estate, it was stated no action will be taken.

13. ADJOURNMENT:
The regular meeting reconvened and adjourned at 12:00 p.m. with no further business or public comments.

The next Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 10, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. The meeting will be held at the Port of Ridgefield office in the downstairs conference room, located at 111 West Division Street in Ridgefield.




________________________________	_______________________________
Bruce Wiseman					Scott Hughes












Respectfully submitted by
Wonder Baldwin
Administrative Assistant


5

